WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD
AGENDA
Tuesday, 21 January 2014 commencing at 9.00 am
Professional Excellence Centre, Acre Lane, Bromborough
1.

09:00 APOLOGIES AND INTRODUCTIONS

2.

09:05 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3.

09:05 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING (Pages 1 - 8)

4.

09:10 BEHAVIOUR UPDATE - POWERPOINT PRESENTATION

5.

09:25 CHILD POVERTY UPDATE: SCHOOL COMMUNITY HUB PROJECT (Pages
9 - 14)

6.

09:45 STAYING SAFE ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 15 - 20)
10:15 BREAK

7.

10:30 SUMMARY REPORT WSCB AND CTB DEVELOPMENT DAY
6 DECEMBER 2013 (Pages 21 - 26)

8.

10:45 INTENSIVE FAMILY INTERVENTION PROJECT UPDATE (Pages 27 - 28)

9.

11:00 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Date and time of next meeting: 9.00 - 12.00 noon 18 March 2014

This page is intentionally left blank

1181

Agenda
Item
3
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S
TRUST
BOARD
MINUTES
Draft Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 19 November 2013

Present: Councillor T Smith (Chair) Councillor W Clements, J Hassall, J Webster,
P Sheridan, S Dainty, K Podmore, G Price, M Kilcoyne, B Morgan, R Longster, K Coxhead,
V Harrison, J Welsh, T. Little
In Attendance: N Clarkson, J. Monty, T. Woodhouse, D Gornik, V Stafford, S Talbot,
For Agenda item no. 9 – K.Drucker, L.Davidson and S.Hudson, T.Tomson, B.Candeland
(Peer Educators from Wirral Youth Theatre)

1.0 APOLOGIES and INTRODUCTIONS
Cllr Tony Smith welcomed the members to the meeting and apologies were received from
J Martin, B Walker, V McGee, L Loughran, J. Owens, G. Batchelor.
He also advised of the following changes to the Board membership.
•
•
•

Suzanne Edwards, General Manager, Cheshire & Wirral Partnership NHS Trust will cover
the Board from November to April 2014 for Val MGee.
Sandra Christie, Director of Quality & Nursing, has replaced Lisa Cooper as the
representative for Wirral Community NHS Trust.
Tracy Little has handed over the administration of the Board to Tessa Woodhouse and
will attend in her capacity as Performance Manager.

2.0 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Bev Morgan, Homestart Wirral, declared an interest as a commissioner in relation to Agenda
item 5.
3.0 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING (24 September 2013) and ACTIONS ARISING
These were accepted as a true record of the meeting.
Action 5. Public Health Commissioning for Children 2013-14.
The draft letter was outstanding.
Action: J. Webster agreed to progress.
4.0 SECONDARY ATTAINMENT FOR ACADEMIC YEAR 2012-13 (P. Sheridan)
The Board received the presentation on the latest position on KS4 and KS5.
5+A*-C inc. English and Maths
Overall results have risen steadily since 2008. The LA continues to perform significantly
above the national average, as it has done since 2008.

Page 1
Page 1

Gender
The gap has widened significantly and the rise in overall results is largely due to
improvement in girls’ results; boys’ results remain unchanged since 2010.
FSM
The gap has narrowed steadily from 2008 to 2012 but has widened significantly in 2013.
This was the result of the non-FSM improving and the non-FSM result falling (for the first time
since 2008).
3 Levels Progress
Overall: the LA result is broadly unchanged, but still significantly higher than national,
despite significant increase in the national result.
Gender: Girls continue to significantly outperform boys, especially in English (national trend)
the Gap has narrowed significantly in English, but has widened in Maths.
FSM: The gap is essentially unchanged in English, but has widened significantly in maths,
largely due to deterioration in performance of FSM pupils.
4 Levels Progress
Overall: LA results in English up slightly though a smaller rise than national. However, the
LA figure remains significantly above the national trend.
The LA result in Maths rose faster than national, and remains significantly above national.
Gender: Girls continue to significantly outperform boys. Gap narrowed significantly in
English but widened significantly in maths.
FSM: Gap widened slightly in English but significantly in maths.
KS5
Graphs were displayed showing data for A level and equivalent qualifications.
Total points per student remain significantly lower than national.
Girls continue to do significantly better than boys; non-FSM continues to do significantly
better than FSM (FSM status at KS4).
2+A*-B
LA similar to national though there was a dip in 2013.
Girls significantly outperform boys.
Non-FSM students significantly outperform those on FSM.
2+ A* - E
As with 2+A*-B but the gaps are much narrower.
D. Gornik asked if there was any evidence if the number of children in FSM had increased as
a result of the economic decline. It was advised that there was no information available as
the FSM indicators had changed. It was also advised that claiming FSM is not automatic and
parents are canvassed by the schools to register their claim.
Cllr Smith asked if there is a difference between claims in primary and secondary areas. The
information was not readily available but could be obtained. Cllr Clements asked if there
was any information available regarding the decline in FSM in secondary schools. K.
Podmore advised that many post 16 yr olds who are eligible for FSM do not take up FSM as
they would prefer to have the support in other areas, such as bus passes.
J. Hassall asked for the number in the cohort and J. Webster offered the services of Public
Health to help with any analysis of data/statistics.

Page 2
2

J Hassall commented that there is a national drive to look at the poorer performance that
children and young people correlate with the Ofsted Judgements of Leadership and
Management. However, Cllr Smith commented that there are pockets of excellence in
attainment in areas of poverty in the Borough. K. Podmore added that the expectation of
high attainment should be the norm and the same across the Board regardless of area.
K. Podmore added that the importance of considering value added regarding the levels of
progress that a young person makes at school. P. Sheridan added that in Wirral individual
children are identified and supported to make the accelerated progress to achieve well.
J. Hassall advised the group of her recent attendance at the Regional Directors of Children’s
Services and the presentation by OFSTED.
5.0 COMMISSIONING (J. Monty)
The Board received an update on the performance of the Children’s Commissioning Services
which have been commissioned until 30 April 2014. J. Monty advised that on commissioning
the services performance measures were agreed and put in place. The areas that were
commissioned are noted below and performance covers the first two quarters.
PA1: Parenting and Family Support
It was reported that one of the commissioners was not meeting the performance target but
this was a newly established service and relied on referrals from social workers. Work is
ongoing with the Provider and plans have been put in place to impact on the referral issue.
PA2: Short Breaks for Disabled Children
Two organisations with four services between them have not met performance targets due to
both a change in management, or the summer period and staff changes. These two
providers will be closely monitored and an updated report will be available for the next
quarter.
PA3: Youth Challenge
One programme, Targeted Support, has not met agreed targets but plans are in place and
the performance will be monitored.
PA4: Statutory Service
One commissioner is not achieving but is heavily dependent on referrals from social workers.
Discussions have taken place with the provider and plans are in place to help achieve the
required target.
PA5: IFIP
The Family Role Model Homestart programme has been re-profiled with the expectation that
outputs will be met in the final two quarters.
Cllr Clements asked what actions were in place to support youth advocacy for LAC leaving
care and J. Monty gave assurance that all young people who were entitled to a visit had
received one. Cllr Clements further commented on the contracts running only for a year and
would therefore be subject to disruption shortly. J. Monty replied that these programmes
were part of the budget options and ideally would like them to be rolled over for a further year
to minimise any disruption. The budget option consultation period closes on 16 December
and will be discussed at the Cabinet meeting. It was noted that performing contracts will
receive consideration for roll-over.
M. Kilcoyne asked what steps were being taken to increase the rate of referrals from social
workers. She was advised that work was ongoing with providers, locality managers and
other senior managers in Social Care. B. Morgan stated that referrals were starting to come

Page 3

3

through and that once the profile of the service was raised then referrals would be
forthcoming. J. Hassall requested an update on this programme at the next meeting.
Action: J. Monty to provide an update for January 2014 meeting
The Board noted the report

6.0 OUR CHILDREN DESERVE BETTER – PREVENTION PAYS (J. Webster)
J. Webster provided the Board with a brief summary of the Chief Medical Officer’s report
related to the health and wellbeing of children and young people and giving them the best
start in life. She further advised that Public Health had a strong history of producing annual
reports and that the Wirral report had recently been issued. The CMO’s report illustrates that
the variations across the country are still vast.
J. Webster highlighted the sections in the report with actions that various organisations
should take and asked that the report is taken as a reference point for the work going forward
and to ensure the findings in the report are reflected in local plans.
D. Gornik asked how this would sit with the JSNA and she was advised it would influence it
and the recommendations would be reflected in the JSNA.
K. Coxhead advised that one of the areas mentioned in the report was parenting and
highlighted that this support was key with children with ADHD. D Gornik added that parenting
support is at the heart of the prevention strategy and one family approach. J Webster noted
that parenting has been a key issue in the latest round of consultations for the recommissioning of the 0 – 19 yr healthy child programme; the keynote being about parenting
at all ages of a child’s life not just 0-5 yrs. J Webster noted that the level of parenting support
should be streamlined and aligned across the partnership. The Board’s attention was also
drawn to Recommendation no. 7 of the report which calls for efforts to narrow attainment
gaps in education complement efforts being made to narrow health inequalities.
Cllr Smith added that it would be useful to know the availability of parenting courses across
the borough and that a report be submitted to the March meeting.
Action: K. Coxhead to submit a report (to include funding sources) to the March
Board.
The Board noted the report.
.
7.0 SAFEGUARDING Q2 REPORT (K. Jones)
The Board received an overview of the latest developments from the Wirral Safeguarding
Children Board (WSCB) with particular reference to the new OFSTED inspection framework
and the differences to previous frameworks.
J. Hassall advised that the inspection would now not occur before Christmas. Inspections
now last four weeks. This new process will look at the experiences of children and young
people with the emphasis being on “so what” and not so much as process. Social workers
will be observed going about their duties and case files will also be audited.
K. Jones took the opportunity to remind the Board of the Joint Development Day on 6
December which will be facilitated by Professor Jan Howarth from Sheffield University. He
also advised that the Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) multi agency sub group of the WSCB
has been established and will oversee the implementation of the CSE Action Plan.

Page 4
4

The Board was also updated on the Critical Incident Reviews and Serious Case Reviews and
were informed that once the reports have been finalised they will be shared with the relevant
agencies.
K. Jones also shared a preview of the campaign posted being developed to raise awareness
of child sexual exploitation. The following comments were noted and would be taken into
consideration.
• Males need to feature in the posters.
• Could the text be reflected in plain English in order to ensure that the message was
clearly understood.
8.0 CHILD POVERTY UPDATE (B. Morgan)
The Board received the report in which it was advised that the School Community Hub
project was approved by Cabinet in June 2013. The activities delivered by the School
Community Hub will be informed by the needs identified by the families and the wider
community. In order to take an asset based approach the Hub will be located within a
primary school and will be funded for 12 months. Four schools have been shortlisted and
interviews are imminent. The start date will be January 2014 and the successful school will
work closely with the new Targeted Service. Report will be submitted to the Board on a
regular basis.
B. Morgan advised that spaces are still available on the ‘Train the Trainer’ course around
child poverty training. This course is free to partners.
9.0 YOUTH VOICE CONFERENCE & YOUTH PARLIAMENT (L. Davidson/K. Druker)
L. Davidson and K. Druker gave an overview of the Youth Voice Conference and Youth
Parliament which took place recently. The Board was advised that the theme for the Youth
Conference was ‘Respect’ and this was the result of a recent consultation. Schools and other
organisations that involve young people were invited and of those who attended 87% rated
the conference 7 or above.
The Board heard from the 3 peer educators regarding their roles and overall experience
gained during and leading up to the events. Their topics on the day covered children and the
media, work with young males (particularly around alcohol and drugs) and working with
people with special needs. They all said how much they had enjoyed the experience and
how much confidence they had gained.
They also had the opportunity to understand democratic processes and practice their
debating skills at the Youth Parliament. Forty nine young people attended and 91% of
these rated the conference 7 out of 10.
The motions from the young people included.
1. Upton Hall School (first motion)
Michael Gove is destroying the educational system of this country.
2. Wirral Youth Theatre Creative Development
Media literacy should be taught in all schools to enable young people to understand and
interpret what they see to ensure that negative and sexualised marketing does not affect their
self-esteem and identity.
3. South Wirral Young People
The new Youth Zone proposed to be built in central Birkenhead will cost Wirral Council £2
million of capital funding and a further £400,000 each year to support its running costs. Do

Page 5
5

you not think that the money would be better spent upgrading existing youth facilities across
Wirral?
4. Weatherhead High School and Wirral Grammar Boys
The Education Maintenance Allowance (EMA) should be brought back into schools, funded
through cuts to MPs salaries and expenses.
5. Upton Hall School (second motion)
I agree with Russell Brand that the current political system is broken and revolution is the
only way forward.
The presentation ended with the recommendations that a revision of the Charter of
Participation and Engagement should take place shortly and also to create a Participation
Reference Group. The Youth Voice Group recommended promotion, planning & delivery,
training for other young people, staff and Elected Members and evaluation.
J. Webster advised she was a member of the ‘hot seat’ and said she found the questions
pertinent and very relevant to the current situation. Feedback will be used in developing
future service specifications around children and young people.
In summary J. Hassall commented that the events get better year on year and thanked the
peer educators for all their work and participation in making the events so successful.
D. Gornik as a newcomer to Wirral endorsed these comments and was extremely impressed
by the whole event and the level of respect and support the children had displayed for each
other.
Cllr Smith thanked the group for all the work they had done and their involvement and as an
attendee how much he had enjoyed the two sessions. He welcomes the opportunity for the
young people of Wirral to experience the democratic processes at work and to share the
opportunity to practice their debating skills.
10.0 YOUTH OFFENDING INSPECTION (J. Hassall)
The Board received an overview of the report of Short Quality Screening of Youth Offending
work in Wirral.
The inspection themes were
• Reducing the likelihood of re-offending
• Protecting the public
• Protecting the child or young person
• Ensuring that the sentence is served
• Operational management
Key strengths were noted as:
• The quality of PSRs prepared for the courts
• The engagement of children and young people and parents/carers in assessments
• The use of a wide range of sources to inform and verify assessments
• The attention paid to encouraging and achieving compliance. Different tactics were
employed, and mostly these were successful. Enforcement was used only as a last
resort
• The assessment and consideration of diversity factors
• There were several examples of positive initial outcomes for children or young people
The most significant areas for improvement were

Page 6
6

•
•

Planning for work to manage risk of harm to others and reduce vulnerability
Management oversight of the quality of assessments and plans.

Overall the report found a very positive picture in Wirral Youth Offending Service and the
service will now focus on post-inspection work on the identified areas requiring improvement.
Cllr Smith welcomed the very positive report and thanked colleagues for their work in this
area.
11.0 TARGETED SERVICES PROGRESS (D. Gornik)
D Gornik introduced herself and gave a brief background to the targeted services project.
She added that the family support services have been remodelled to better coordinate a
multi-agency support to families through a single lead professional approach focussing on
the whole family at a community level. This integrated approach is already showing benefits.
She tabled a position paper which can be used to generate discussion and feedback would
be welcome. The document outlined the following key points:
• Services integral to the new targeted approach
• Success to date
• Drivers for change
• Challenges and strengths
• What the partnership still needs to do
• What success would mean
D Gornik noted that following her appointment she has noticed that there is a very strong
evidence of political support on the Wirral and to ensure we are doing the doing the best for
children, young people and the family. Also the willingness to do things differently is widely
accepted across the Council. J. Hassall reinforced this by saying the service is not
exclusively a Council service and its success depends on it being embedded across all
partners.
Cllr Smith requested that an update is submitted to the Board.
Action: D. Gornik to submit an update on Targeted Services to a future meeting.
12.0 REPORT OF CHILDREN’S TRUST STRUCTURE (N. Clarkson)
N. Clarkson outlined the background to the current position with regard to the WCT sub
groups in order that they remain fit for purpose and to ensure that key priorities of the new
CYPP 2013-16 are delivered.
Work is ongoing as changes in the public sector continue. The areas under review are
Staying Safe and Achievement and Economic Wellbeing and the associated sub groups. It
was confirmed that there are no plans to amend the structure and operation of the Being
Healthy Strategy Group.
The Board was also advised of the work being undertaken by the Participation Champion.
The review will be carried out by the CTE and the proposed changes submitted to the March
Board for sign off and implementation by April 2014.
P. Sheridan asked if the LAC groups were being involved. N. Clarkson confirmed that
discussions were underway to ensure that the work regarding LAC education, employment
and support was incorporated into the restructure.

Page 7
7

13.0 CYPP QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE REPORT (T. Little)
Tracy Little reviewed the report and advised that of the 21 indicators being reported, 5 are
new measures that would be baseline in 2013. Of the 16 measures 13 were rated GREEN, 1
is AMBER and 2 are RED against target.
RED: Prevalence of breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks
Work continues with Homestart and it was also noted that the target had been reviewed and
had been reduced. J. Webster also confirmed that there has been a great deal of investment
and effort put into this programme. Viv Harrison gave details of the breastfeeding App that
has been developed by the Community Trust.
RED: Rate of CP Plans per 10,000 population (0-17)
This has increased over the year compared to the previous quarter. A full audit of all current
child protections plans will be undertaken before Christmas.
CLOSE
As there was no further business the meeting closed at 12.00 noon and Cllr Smith thanked
all members for their time and contribution.

DATE AND TIME OF 2014 MEETINGS
9.00 am 21 January 2014
9.00 am 18 March 2014
9.00 am 20 May 2014
9.00 am 15 July 2014

Page 8
8

Agenda Item 5
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 21st January 2014
CHILD POVERTY UPDATE: SCHOOL COMMUNITY HUB PROJECT
1.0

Background and Introduction

1.1

The purpose of this report is to outline the progress that has been made in respect
of establishing a primary school community hub, further to recommendations made
to the Council’s Cabinet in June 2013 by Wirral’s Child and Family Poverty Working
Group.

1.2

The proposed approach to establishing the school community hub, as set out in the
report to Cabinet, is based on enhancing the vital role of schools and creating a
platform for them to act as a catalyst for transforming local communities.

1.3

The Child and Family Poverty Working Group was established in May 2011 to
explore the evidence and research and make recommendations as how the Council
and partners should address its statutory duty in relation to child poverty.

1.4

The £100,000 funding available for the project was allocated to Wirral’s Child and
Family Poverty Working Group to identify priorities and put in place activities to
address issues of child poverty. It should also be noted that, in respect of funding
for child poverty initiatives, a commitment is also in place to support the Birkenhead
Foundation Years project. A report on this project will be brought to the Children’s
Trust following consideration by Cabinet.

2.0

SCHOOL COMMUNITY HUB PROJECT

2.1

In their recommendations to Cabinet, the Working Group suggested that the project
should take as its starting point an asset-based approach and suggested that
testing this approach in a localised way through a ‘school community hub’ would be
the most effective use of the resources available. It is intended that activities
delivered through the ‘school community hub’ will be informed by the needs
identified by families and the wider community, and that lessons learnt from the
approach should be rolled out borough-wide.

2.2

The rationale for using a primary school as a hub is they tend to have a focused
geography, are naturally accepted as community leaders, have a resource of
buildings, land and people and access to enrolled children, younger and older
siblings and most importantly to parents. There is also evidence that primary
school pupils are much more likely to be affected by an area’s economics and
employment deprivation than their counterparts in secondary schools.

2.3

The Working Group proposed that a school should be selected through a
transparent commissioning process and that this school should then:
§

Identify / recruit community organisers to work using the school as a base;

§

Work with the school community to develop an asset map for the local area, and
an action plan which sets out what the community can do for itself, what it needs
support to do, and what it wants partners to deliver;

Page 9

§
2.4

2.5

The following commissioning process was developed and implemented by with
support and guidance from the Council’s Procurement Team:
§

Primary schools where the majority of pupils on roll are affected by child poverty
and deprivation were invited to express an interest in delivering the community
hub project by September 2013;

§

An information session took place in September to provide headteachers with
the opportunity to ask any questions about the project;

§

Four schools expressed an interest within the deadline using the template
provided;

§

Visits to these schools took place on the 6th November by members of the
Working Group, with formal interviews being undertaken on the 19th November.
These were undertaken by a panel which was chaired by the Director of
Children’s Services.

On the basis of the visits to the four schools and the scored interviews, two of the
four schools received joint highest scores and were selected to pilot the community
hub approach. Each of the following schools has been allocated £50,000:
§
§

2.6

Holy Spirit Catholic and Church of England Primary School Primary School
(Leasowe and Moreton East Ward, Wallasey Constituency);
Fender Primary School (Upton Ward, Wirral West Constituency).

Dedicated project planning and project management support has been identified by
Public Health to support the establishment of the school community hubs,
particularly with regard to ensuring that robust monitoring is in place with regard to
budget expenditure. In addition, this support will:
§
§
§
§
§

2.7

Support the community organisers to deliver this action plan, with clear project
management arrangements.

Identify best practice from other areas to feed into the development of the hubs;
Focus the hubs so they are able to demonstrate how their projects will have an
impact on the community;
Ensure the hubs have an early evaluation plan including tailored outcomes for
that specific project such as case studies, distance travelled etc.
Ensure community champions have the skills that are key to delivering a
successful community led programme;
Ensure the projects are meeting whole community needs and not just the needs
of parents who attend the school.

The Child and Family Working Group will act as a stakeholder group for the school
community hub project and will consider progress as part of its quarterly meetings
(see Appendix 1 attached). Again with dedicated support from Public Health, the
Working Group will:
§

Develop a local child poverty performance management framework which
reflects the Liverpool City Region Strategy on Poverty and Life Changes and
benchmark performance with other areas;

Page 10

§
§

Produce a quarterly update for the Children’s Trust Board which can be widely
circulated;
Support the development of local projects.

3.0

RECOMMENDATIONS:

3.1

That members of the Children’s Trust Board note the progress made in respect of
establishing the School Community Hub project.

APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Child and Family Poverty Working Group Work Programme
Report Authors:
Jane Morgan
Wirral Council

Contact:
Phone: 691 8318
Email: janemorgan@wirral.gov.uk

Bev Morgan
Manager, Home-start Wirral
Chair, Wirral Child and Family Poverty
Working Group

Phone: 647 8369
Email: bevmorgan@homestartwirral.co.uk

Page 11

Appendix 1: Child and Family Poverty Working Group Work Programme 2013-2015

WIRRAL CHILD AND FAMILY POVERTY WORKING GROUP
As partners in the future of Wirral, we want to reduce the numbers of children
and young people living in poverty and support them to build the foundations
for prosperous, healthy and happy lives. We also want to raise the
aspirations of all of our children and young people and their families so that
their dreams for themselves and their communities can be achieved.
As a Working Group, we will:
§ Challenge ourselves and others to take practical action to achieve our
common goals of reducing poverty and harnessing the talent and
ambitions of Wirral’s children, families and communities;
§ Act as a key stakeholder group for the School Community Hub initiative
put in place by the Council to find new and innovative ways of working with
families building on the assets found in local areas;
§ Proactively promote the use of research and best practice in addressing
poverty.
We will focus our energies on ensuring that Wirral plays its part in delivering
the aims and actions identified in the Liverpool City Region Child Poverty and
Life Chances Strategy. The current priorities for this strategy are:
§
§
§
§
§
§

Improve school readiness
Support families to be prepared for Universal Credit;
Tackle children and young people with unhealthy weight;
Close attainment differences in schools;
Improve transport access;
Increase employment and skills within low income families.

Our programme of work is set out overleaf. This will be reviewed at the end
of Working Group meetings to take into account any changing priorities from
the LCR Commission and local issues. The Working Group will report
quarterly to Wirral’s Children’s Trust on its work programme.

Page 12

Meeting

Agenda

December
2013

§
§
§

March 2014

June 2014

§
§
§
§
§
§

September
2014

§
§
§

December
2014

§
§
§

March 2015

§
§
§
§

Additional
Contribution (to be
confirmed)
School Community Hub Update § Steve Lloyd, DWP
LCR priority: Supporting
National
families to be prepared for
Partnerships Team
Universal Credit
presentation on
Research and Best Practice:
Universal Credit
Leadership Academy
presentation on tackling
poverty
School Community Hub Update § Public Health Team
LCR priority: Tackling children
on Food Plans
§ Fuel Poverty Team
and young people with
unhealthy weight
on Fuel Poverty
Local issue: Fuel poverty
projects
Research and Best Practice
School Community Hub Update § Zoë Munby,
LCR priority: Improving school
Foundation Years
readiness
Trust project
Research and Best Practice
School Community Hub Update § Cllr Tony Smith
LCR priority: Closing income
(LCR Commission
differences in attainment in
lead) and Dave
schools
Hollomby, School
Research and Best Practice
Improvement
School Community Hub Update § DWP / Economic
LCR Priority: Increasing
Policy Team / Reach
employment and skills within
Out
low income families
Research and Best Practice
School Community Hub Update § Merseytravel / Wirral
LCR Priority: Improving
Transport Team
Transport Access
Research and Best Practice

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14

Agenda Item 6
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 21st January 2014
STAYING SAFE STRATEGY GROUP UPDATE REPORT TO THE BOARD

1.0 Introduction
The Staying Safe work stream of the Children and Young People’s Plan aims to improve children’s
safety and narrow the gap in outcomes experienced by our most disadvantaged children; current
priorities for 2013/14 are:
•
•
•

To support those children and young people who require extra help at the earliest
opportunity;
To improve outcomes for children in care and care leavers;
To improve outcomes for children and young people in need of protection;

The Staying Safe Strategy Group is the sub group of the Trust and ensures the delivery of the
Staying Safe element of the Children and Young People’s Plan. The Staying Safe Plan comprises
a number of different projects / activities, which taken as a whole provide an integrated response to
meeting the needs of vulnerable children in Wirral. At each meeting key specified target areas are
reported, with a focus on demonstrating the impact on improved outcomes for children and
families, and where applicable evidenced through an improvement in local or national indicators.
Partners across the Trust share information and ensure that progress across the Trust is tracked
and that improved outcomes for children can be measured.
2.0 Overview of progress
Key recent
achievements
Priority 1

To support those children and young people who require extra help at the
earliest opportunity
• Wirral experienced a Peer Challenge in 2012. A key area identified was
how Wirral engaged and worked with ‘harder to reach’ families at level 3.
This led to a review of Family Support; a review of commissioning
arrangements for early help and support; and a drive to establish an
early help offer across Wirral which included the Government’s
‘Troubled Families Programme known locally as IFIP (Intensive Family
Intervention Project).
• Following detailed planning and consultation, Wirral’s new model of
early help was established in September 2013. Known as Team Around
the Family. This focuses on a more targeted, proactive approach to
identifying and working with families with additional needs.
• Key components include the Gateway, which coordinates requests for
early help services. Here, requests from partners for support services for
families are clearly coordinated and sign posted, thereby reducing
duplication of services and ensuring that families receive the most
appropriate help relevant to their needs. A key feature of the Gateway is
that it is situated alongside the CADT (Central Advice and Duty Team for
Children’s Social Care enquiries). The advantage of this is that families
can receive the help they need as swiftly as possible. With these 2
services working closely alongside each other there is no ‘wrong front
door’ for families; they can feel confident that joint working between
Targeted and Specialist Services will identify additional needs and the
most effective interventions can be put in place.
• A further component to the model is locality working. By working within
the community strong professional relationships between partners can
develop. Importantly, professionals and services are closer to the

Page 15

1

families they are working with. It also enables closer working between
early help and Social Care teams, thereby ensuring a smooth transition
between the levels of need with minimal impact on families.
There are improved outcomes for children in care and care leavers:
•

•

•

Wirral continues to prioritise housing for care leavers. There is a plan in
place for Housing colleagues to work with colleagues within the Children
and Young People’s Department regarding jointly commissioning
appropriate accommodation.
Wirral has adopted an approach which benefits from a dedicated
employability team that works closely with our Pathways Leaving Care
team. The Employability team has a personal coach and a Peer Mentor
to support the young people into EET. Key stakeholders attend a
monthly Employability Operations Group e.g. Connexions that selects
young people to work with at any time. The Pathways team identifies a
caseload of young people and the employability options for each
individual are discussed and progress regarding each individual is
tracked closely.
With regard to Fostering and Adoption an update report was taken to the
Families and Wellbeing committee on 5 December 2013.

http://wir06metrognome/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=681&MId=4592&Ver=4
•

Key progress areas to highlight are:

-

Foster Carer recruitment: Current priorities are placement choice for
teenagers, children with more complex needs, and for children who are
part of a large sibling group for whom there is a plan to place together. A
project is due to get underway that focuses on a stronger customer
model of recruiting and retaining foster carers.
A new Foster Carer Web Forum is being developed to enable foster
carers and staff to exchange views, information, advice, support and
training. This is an opportunity to enhance communication between
carers themselves and also for the team to keep carers up to date with
information and news of events.
Wirral Council is part of a North West Consortia of six Local Authorities
and two independent agencies who bid for a government grant for the
“Expanding Foster Carer project”. The bid was successful and although
it is early days, work has started. The project aims to develop a good
practice strategy for recruitment and retention of foster carers. The
project is expected to run for two years and is supported by the DfE.
The Adoption service has improved performance in relation to family
finding timescales by learning from a diagnostic exercise. Focus has
been on family finding and planning to find a family at an early stage.
Performance in relation to family finding has also improved through
changing how information about children is safely shared with adopters.
This is referred to as the child’s profile. The style, content and
presentation of this information have been redesigned to provide for a
more accurate representation of the children’s character and personality,
through the use of media such as a DVD.
The Centre for Excellence and Outcomes is now working with the
Council as part of the agreed expenditure from the Adoption Grant on a
specific project to address performance. This project is underway and
focuses on embedding the principles of permanence, reducing delay in
achieving permanence for children, enhancing skills in reflective
practice, and sharpening analytical skills and decision making.

-

-

-

-

Page 16

2

-

In terms of timescales for adoption, these are starting to improve as a
consequence of the work that has been undertaken.

There are improved outcomes for children and young people in need of
protection:
Key activity in this area includes the following:
•

•

•

•

Key challenges
ahead

Strengthening of the ‘front door’ to early help (Targeted) and Children’s
Social Care (Specialist Services). This has included the development of
a MASH (Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub) model alongside the CADT
and the Gateway. This component of the front door enables a multiagency approach to dealing with potential child protection queries. It
ensures timely information sharing between partners, which enables
swift and clearer decision-making regarding families in need of help and
protection. Therefore, with efficient and effective processes from the
start families can receive the intervention they need, which help to
secure improved outcomes in the future. This model continues to be
developed; it has its own project lead, with progress tracked by a MASH
Board.
A key to achieving successful outcomes for children is early
identification of need and timely interventions. This requires a clear
understanding of levels of need and strong communication between
partners. Systems are being developed that ensure joint discussions
take place between these services so that families receive the most
appropriate and effective help. To help achieve this, multi-agency
training regarding CAF and early help will include a component on
Wirral’s levels of need.
Audits have taken place regarding Children in Need and Child Protection
Plans. This has highlighted a number of areas where practice could be
improved for example, outcomes-focused plans. Improvements here will
help all partners to better measure progress within families and the
impact of clearly defined multi-agency interventions.
With regard to Social Care, a number of key principles have been
agreed within Specialist Services that aim to improve the way Social
Care staff work with children and families. This has led to proposals
regarding service redesign that includes frontline Social Work teams,
Fostering and Adoption and Care Leaver services. One particular key
principle is the development of smaller Social Work teams with a
management arrangement that enables decision-making that is closer to
the child. Another principle is capacity to ensure consistent and
reflective supervision of Social Work staff. Design proposals continue to
be developed.

There continue to be key challenges in light of ongoing national and local
Government reform, in particular:
• The continuing challenging economic climate causing greater hardship
to some of the most disadvantaged children and families.
• Budget pressures affecting all public sector services. This can increase
the potential for organisations to become more insular, thereby
increasing pressure on usually strong partnerships and collaborations.
• Reforms within schools as more move to Academy status.
• Ongoing of Social Work Reform and continuing media interest in social
work practice.
There are also some additional local challenges to consider:

Page 17

3

•

•
•

•
•

•

Risks to
outcome
delivery and
proposed
actions

•

•

•

Areas
requiring
further
partnership
involvement

Equalities
impact
assessment
areas for
development
and progress
made
Areas for
promotion
/publicity /
communication
/ engagement

Ensuring that Wirral benefits from a more integrated, collaborative
approach between partners at both strategic and operational level; and
that this is developed fully between children’s and adult-led services that
reflects the “think family” agenda.
The number of children in care (currently 100 per 10,000), with
continuing high activity in Court.
The high numbers of children and families open to Children’s Social
Care. The overall challenge here is identifying need as early as possible
and preventing needs escalating, thereby reducing the demand for more
costly and intrusive interventions.
Implementing the MASH without impacting on families. With clear
strategic direction and careful operational planning this risk is reduced.
Implementing a Service redesign within Specialist Services that impacts
positively on families. We need to ensure we have the capacity to work
with those families that need Social Care interventions and that families
can be helped and supported in a preventative way where possible.
Whilst we improve the way we work with families in a more preventative
way, we need to ensure that our systems and processes fully capture
this quality work. There are IT challenges with this that need addressing
throughout 2014/15.
Loss of focus on key priority areas caused by restructuring/
reorganisation – therefore we need to ensure governance groups are
actively aware of this potential and work to mitigate risks.
Inability to recruit to key posts to deliver action plan and shortage of staff
in key outcome areas – therefore we need to make effective use of
recruitment and retention strategies across the Trust; and active use of
risk registers and alerts within individual agencies.
Reduction in available funding e.g. on preventative services, or capacity
to jointly fund services – therefore we need to monitor/evidence impact
of changes to resource allocation, and be clear about what is essential.

Development and implementation of the MASH model
Development of a corporate safeguarding model across Children’s and
Adult Services. Within both these areas partners need to ensure that
there are clearly defined lines of accountability and governance
arrangements so that safeguarding systems remain strong.
• Auditing of child protection/child in need cases as we develop a more
multi-agency approach to this work.
• Consistent application of levels of need across the continuum, from TAF
and CIN to Child Protection and Looked After Children services.
Current equalities impact assessments are being reviewed in light of new
models / frameworks of working with families.
•
•

•
•
•
•

Private Fostering rolling programme of publicity continues
Road Traffic – accident prevention continues to be delivered to schools
targeting key areas such as teenagers.
Teen Wirral website launched with an area of Staying Safe which
includes drugs, bullying and alcohol awareness.
Safe Sleep awareness programme developed through Public Health
with local publicity distributed to parents

Page 18

4

Strengths:
Weaknesses:
1. Active group members, committed to 1. Constant challenge, amidst high volume of
delivering the Staying Safe Plan to improve
priorities to ensure effective co-ordination of
activity and clear accountability for action.
outcomes for vulnerable children.
2. Strong focus on listening to children and 2. High numbers of children continue to receive
young people’s views to inform the
high level statutory interventions – still need
agenda;
to maintain and strengthen focus on effective
earlier intervention.
3. Strong partnership working, resulting in
tangible improvements e.g. in the quality
of CAFs; more focused commissioning
informed by identified needs, more
evidence based services developed for
children on the edge of care.
Opportunities:
1. A Child Centred System – The
Government’s response to the Munro
review of child protection.
2. Reduced bureaucracy resulting in greater
freedom to measure what is important /
less emphasis on “ticking boxes”, and
more emphasis on outcomes.
3. Review of current Trust systems/
structures in light of newly established
Targeted Services and early help focus.

Threats:
1. Increased identification of vulnerable children
(which is good) leading to capacity issues in
some areas of work, resulting in slower
progression of plans;
2. Budget constraints leading to overstretched
services and potential gaps in provision.
3. Internal service redesign in public sector
organisations potentially causing a loss of
focus on vulnerable service users. Loss of
expertise and experience as significant
numbers of people are leaving different public
sector organisations.

3.0 Summary
The Staying Safe Strategy Group has addressed many key areas fundamental to keeping children
safe and improving their outcomes. Now that Wirral has established new models/frameworks for
working with children and families, it is an ideal opportunity to review and adapt current systems
within the Trust for overseeing its key strategic priorities.
4.0 Recommendations:
4.1

That Wirral Children’s Trust Board endorse the report.

4.2

That Wirral Children’s Trust Board approve a review of the Staying Safe Strategy Group
and its respective sub-groups

Report Author:
Emma Taylor
Lead for Staying Safe Strategy Group

Contact:
Email: emmataylor2@wirral.gov.uk

Page 19

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20

Agenda Item 7
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 21st January 2014
Wirral Safeguarding Children Board and Children’s Trust Board Development Day
6th December 2013 - Summary Report

1.0 Background
At the September 2013 meeting of the WSCB the Board resolved to hold a development
day in December to allow the WSCB and the Wirral Children’s Trust Board (CTB) to
discuss the impact and consequences for partner agencies of the publication of Working
Together in April 2013 and preparation for the Ofsted inspection of the effectiveness of
LSCB’s published in November 2013.
Jan Horwath, Professor of Child Welfare at the University of Sheffield was commissioned
by the WSCB to facilitate the development day. Jan has facilitated previous development
days and sessions with the WSCB over the past 6 years and most recently led a day with
the WSCB and CTB in December 2012 which explored what Wirral’s early help offer
should look like.
2.0 Introduction
The Development Day was held on 6th December 2013 and was attended by 47
colleagues from the WSCB and CTB representing a variety of agencies including health,
education, police, fire service, children’s specialist services, children’s targeted services,
Wirral Council and voluntary, community and faith organisations..
Julia Hassall (DCS) and Bernard Walker (Independent Chair WSCB) introduced the day
and set the scene. Bernard emphasised the importance of safeguarding and the
increasing importance of engaging with our communities to keep children safe. He also
stated the importance for us to evidence the good work which is undertaken across the
partnerships. Julia highlighted the importance of development days as good opportunities
to reflect on the work we do to ensure that the systems we use are safe and to remind us
that we are the leaders who set the tone, culture and priorities for the staff in our
organisations.
Jan introduced the activities for the day and stated that she feels Wirral’s Safeguarding
Board and Children’s Trust Board are both operating from a position of strength and this
strength will allow them to critically analyse their respective roles and responsibilities and
to evaluate the relationship between both Boards.
Jan outlined the three sessions to be delivered during the day:
2.1 Session 1 Implications of Working Together 2013
To consider how WSCB and CTB can build on existing arrangements to ensure the needs
of maltreated and vulnerable children in Wirral are met. This was undertaken byExploring the roles and responsibilities of the WSCB and CTB and considering how they
can work together to improve practice;
Identifying the challenges for agencies, professionals, communities, children and families
in 2014 and establishing ways in which these can be addressed by collaborative
partnership working;

Page 21

Proposing favourable changes to current ways of working.
2.2 Session 2 Performance Information
Consideration of what is it that the WSCB (and others) need to know to be assured that
children in Wirral are adequately safeguarded. This included consideration ofWhat do we know about Wirral?
What data do we need to know to be assured safeguarding is adequate?
What is the evidence base for knowing how effective safeguarding practice is, and how
can we triangulate the evidence base?
What are the next steps Wirral needs to take?
2.3 Session 3 Ofsted review of the Effectiveness of LSCB’s
Ascertaining the expectations of OFSTED regarding LSCBs and establishing how WSCB
can demonstrate its effectiveness. This was undertaken byCompletion of an Ofsted Readiness questionnaire by WSCB and CTB members prior to
the development day;
Consideration of the effectiveness of the WSCB by evidencing good practice for 5 key
themes:
•
•
•
•
•

Leadership
Partnership Arrangements
Service user Perspectives
Professional Learning
Improving Outcomes through Quality Practice

A summary of the activities and discussions from each session as the outcomes and
actions is presented below.
3.0 Activities, Outcomes and Actions from the Sessions
3.1 Session 1 Implications of Working Together 2013
The session established the different roles of the WSCB and the CTB as:
WSCB- Responsibility of WSCB to assess the effectiveness of the help being provided to
children and families including early help;
To assess whether partner agencies are fulfilling statutory obligations in terms of
identifying emerging problems
CTB- Wirral’s Children’s Trust vision is to enable Wirral’s children, young people and
families to access services quickly in order to be secure, healthy, have fun and achieve
their full potential.
Discussion took place about the relationship between the WSCB and the CTB. It became
apparent that there was some confusion amongst colleagues about how the two Board’s
‘fitted’ together, particularly around how they communicate and challenge each other.
This was further explored by a mixed group activity which presented a series of fictional
scenario’s (e.g. a recent serious case review has identified poor quality CAFs completed

Page 22

by midwives) related to early help services. For each scenario the groups had to consider
whether the WSCB or CTB was responsible and should take action and if so what action
should be taken.
Key observations and discussion points raised by the activity were:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The lines of responsibility to and from the WSCB and CTB are often unclear
How does the WSCB hold the CTB to account (what are the mechanisms)?
Do CTB members have a responsibility to ‘champion’ safeguarding at CTB
meetings?
How can the WSCB and CTB gain a collaborative advantage?
A review of lines of communication and role and purpose of sub committees is
needed
Activity should be led by the priorities of the WSCB
The Executive of both Board’s should be empowered to make strategic decisions
A remodelling opportunity exists to align the work of the CTB, WSCB, HWBB and
other groups

Following the discussions groups were tasked with producing a model for the future which
showed how the WSCB and CTB (and other groups) should be developed. These have
been summarised and can be sent out on request. The models all differed and some
included moving to a locality model whilst others combined the CTB and HWBB or
replaced the CTB with a simpler commissioning group or children’s strategic group.
Actions
• For the CTB and WSCB to consider how best to ensure a productive
relationship exists
• For the CTB to review its current operational and sub group model
3.2 Session 2 Performance Information
Kevin Jones, Interim Safeguarding Manager, led a session which explored the future of the
performance information which is presented to the WSCB on a quarterly basis. The
presented data is a key part of the body of evidence which assures the Board that children
are safeguarded. Presently the data is very social care ‘heavy’ and includes limited
amounts of multi-agency data. It has been recognised that LSCB’s can be data rich but
intelligence poor and it is important that there are now surprises in our Wirral data
uncovered by audits and inspections.
The presentation was well received and the main proposals from the presentation were to:
•
•

•

•

Establish a multi-agency meeting early in the New Year to explore the content of
future performance information more closely
For the group to also propose a more sophisticated was of presenting and
interrogating the data to make ‘drilling down’ into detail and the data behind the data
possible and to establish a model for triangulating the data (eg combining data with
findings from audits, feedback from children, parents, staff etc)
Undertake a short audit of partner agencies to find out who knows what in terms of
key safeguarding data (including health agencies undertaking their own internal
audit across the health economy)
For a proposed draft dataset to be presented to the WSCB in March 2014

Page 23

Action
• For the WSCB to establish an extraordinary meeting in February 2014, to
include interested partners from the CTB, for the purpose of designing a
model for the presentation of future multi-agency performance information
3.3 Session 3 Ofsted review of the Effectiveness of LSCB’s
The final session led by Jan considered how the WSCB can demonstrate its effectiveness.
Prior to the development day an Ofsted readiness questionnaire had been sent out to
WSCB and CTB members for them to gauge how well prepared they believe the WSCB to
be. The questionnaire and full analysis report are available on request. The
recommendations from the report are for the WSCB to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Ensure practitioners in all agencies are aware of the work of the WSCB and its sub
groups
Discuss how the WSCB can evidence how standards are fully achieved
Prioritise the resolving of the WSCB’s financing and resourcing by partners
Involve a wider range of practitioners in auditing and developing good practice
Ensure the training strategy includes evaluating the impact of training on outcomes
for children, young people and families
Publicise the governance and communication arrangements which exist between
the WSCB and other influential bodies
Collect the views and wishes of children and young people and use as a measure
of improvement
Widely publicise the Annual Report

Jan continued the afternoon session by summarising the (Ofsted) features of an
outstanding LSCB:
Highly influential and strategic;
• Directly influences and improves performance in the care and protection of children;
•

Ensures improvement is sustained and extends across multi-disciplinary practice
with children and young people and families;

•

Secures exceptional analysis and evaluation of performance and helps the local
authority and its partners to properly understand the impact of services, the quality
of practice and the areas for improvement;
Ensures a comprehensive range of training for managers and practitioners that is
directly related to multi-agency improvement priorities.

•

Jan presented the features of a good and outstanding LSCB from the Ofsted inspection
framework summarised under five headings and groups were asked to list evidence which
demonstrated that the WSCB could evidence they had met each of the standards.
The completed response sheets have been written up and are available on request. The
responses indicate that partners feel the WSCB:
•
•
•

Has some examples of excellent practice but must record them
Process for undertaking and learning from SCR’s and training programme are real
strengths
Should continue the review of performance information and set itself aspirational
targets

Page 24

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Must focus on recording the voice of the child but also record the voice of the family
and of the practitioner
Need to include young people in the design of service
Should involve frontline practitioners more in audits, sub groups and task and finish
groups
Should focus on outcomes for children and young people as an indicator of
effectiveness
Use different media to reach the community (Website, Twitter, Video, Facebook etc)
Collects a lot of quantitative data but needs more qualitative data
Needs to demonstrate better challenge to agencies

Action
• For the WSCB to request examples of good or emerging practice from
agencies which demonstrate effectiveness of the WSCB and safeguarding
3.4 Facilitators Summary
Jan commented that collecting and using the voice of the child was commented on by
most of the groups as an area from development by the WSCB and hopefully individual
examples of good practice would be returned from agencies.
Jan reiterated that she feels that both the WSCB and the CTB are operating from a
position of strength and whilst improvements can always be made both Boards should be
pleased by how they operate effectively. Having said that, now is a good time to review
how both Boards operate individually and collectively. On a practical basis Jan suggested
that the WSCB collects and keeps examples of good practice and any changes which are
made to either Board are evidence based.
4.0 Recommendation:
That Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the report and consider the outcomes from the
day.
Appendices
The discussion and activities undertaken by each table group in the three sessions have
been written up and are available from David Robbins (WSCB) Business Manager to be
emailed on request. This also includes the detailed findings from the pre Development Day
Ofsted preparation questionnaire.

Report Author:
David Robbins
WSCB Business Manager

Contact:
Phone: 0151 6664314
Email: davidrobbins@wirral.gov.uk

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26

Agenda Item 8
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 21st January 2014
Intensive Family Intervention Programme (IFIP)

1.0 Background
1.1 The Intensive Family Intervention Programme (IFIP) is Wirral’s local response to the
national Troubled Families agenda. The criteria for being identified as a troubled family
are as follows:
(i) A child within the family whose attendance at school is less than 85%
(ii) A member of the family is involved in criminal or anti-social behaviour
(iii) A member of the family is in receipt of out-of-work benefits
1.2 In Wirral we are expected to work with 900 families by 31st March 2015 to improve
school attendance, reduce criminal/anti-social behaviour and raise aspirations
regarding employment and training.

2.0 Introduction
2.1Intensive Family Support has been commissioned in Wirral since 2006. Implementation
of the Troubled Families programme has allowed us to learn from this previous
experience and national research on Intensive Family Support in order to design a
delivery model which is both evidence-based and sustainable. Following on from the
original IFIP pilot in Seacombe and the Peer Challenge of CYPD’s family support we
have reconfigured the service, realigned resources and invested in the core
competencies of staff. This has provided CYPD with an unique opportunity to develop
the wider Family Support Service so that for future years the Department will be able to
provide this service in-house.
3.0 Current Position
3.1 Delivery of the programme commenced in November 2011. Progress as of 31st
December 2012 is as follows:
- 678 families identified as meeting the criteria for IFIP
- 495 families worked/working with
- 204 positive outcomes claimed against the Payment by Results framework
These results make Wirral one of the best performing authorities in the North West
region.
4.0 Delivery
4.1 Currently the programme is delivered in 3 tiers. Families requiring ‘intensive’
support are allocated to a dedicated IFIP Key Worker. These staff work with only 6-7
families at any given time. Families with less intensive needs are matched to a Key
Worker within the Family Support Service who will have a caseload of 10-15 families.
The final tier, which is in its initial stages of development, involves practitioners from

Page 27

partner agencies delivering to 2-3 families which are already on their caseload. All staff
delivering the model receive accredited training and regular, reflective supervision.

5.0 Partnership Working
5.1 Partnership working continues to be a strong feature of the IFIP programme.
Secondees from Merseyside Police, Connexions Service, Health, Job Centre+ and
Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service are integral to identifying families, sharing
information and providing a comprehensive service. Joint initiatives, such as Safety
Planning, Family Group Meetings and Employability Coaching are delivered in
partnership by secondees and IFIP Key Workers.
5.2 In addition to the positive working relations with partner agencies, IFIP has established
links across Council departments. Linking with the 14 -19 Team, Adult Learning,
ReachOut and the ESF Working Families programme, existing resources are being
utilised to maximise outcomes and achieve positive results for Wirral families.
Establishing links with Constituency Managers through locality working is a priority for
2014 and plans to develop an Asset Based Community Development model into the
IFIP programme are being initiated.
6.0 Information Sharing
6.1 The programme continues to be intelligence-led, and the Information Desk set up for
IFIP has merged with the Gateway for Targeted and Preventative Services. The
Gateway, which provides access to services at Levels 2 and 3 of the Continuum of
Need, dovetails with the Central Advice and Duty Team, working to ensure that all
children and families receive the right level of service at the right time. This
development has enabled quicker identification of families eligible for IFIP and
promotes more effective information sharing and easier engagement of families.
7.0 DCLG Publication
7.1 Louise Casey, Director General for Troubled Families, returned to Wirral on 18th
September 2013 with her Head of Policy, Rachel Flag. The purpose of the visit was to
offer IFIP Key Workers the opportunity to contribute to a new DCLG publication,
‘Listening to Workers’ which will examine the importance of the relationship between
the Key Worker and the family. Six Key Workers were interviewed, giving their views
on what helps to turn families around. Louise Casey also requested to meet with one
of the parents she had interviewed in November 2012, to get an update on the positive
progress she has made.

8.0 Recommendation:
That Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the report.

Report Author:
Elizabeth Hartley
IFIP Programme Leader

Contact:
Phone: 637 6416
Email: elizabethhartley@wirral.gov.uk

Page 28

